Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of
loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Director report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Director report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required

to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under
the relevant laws and regulations
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and reiated disclosures made Dy management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

10.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Further,
in the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to verify whether the backup of
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has been maintained on a
daily basis on servers physically located in India during the audit period.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the djrectors as on March 31, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A7,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2024 under the applicable
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024,
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iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries (Refer Note 49(iv)(a) to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries(Refer Note 49(iv)(a) to the
financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting software, which is operated by a third
party software service provider, for maintaining its books of account where service organisation’s
auditor’s report do not cover audit trail, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature of
the aforesaid software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been tampered
with,

-13.The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For rice Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009

i

Sonika Burman
Partner
Membership Number 504839

UDIIN: 245U4063YDNAU 1 LY5Y7/
Place:Gurugram
Date:May 22, 2024
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act .

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Indivinity
Clothing Retail Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the [internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial

stateiuciuts.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

T
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in‘all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

W %W

Sonika Burman
Partner
Membership Number: 504839

UDIN : 24504839BKAUTL9597
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the
books of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

i

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is mainlaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a

()

phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable properties. Refer Note 3 to the financial statements.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of

(e)

Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
the financial statements does not arise.

ii.(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conductyed at reasonable intervals by Management

iii.

(b)

during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have
substantially been confirmed by them.The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The terms of sanction do not

rhiraalatn Blvmn AF st asder b e b o fal L LT 3 3 A aL . et
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of our commenting on whether the returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company, does not arise.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting
under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(ii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not °
applicable to the Company.
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iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vil. (a) In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

viii.  There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

ix. (@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has utilised funds raised on short-term basis aggregating Rs 2450.14 lacs for long-term
purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

x(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the vear Aceardingly. the renorting under clance o(v)a) nf

the Order is not applicable to the C(;mpany.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during

the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.
1 Co Charyy
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(b)

(0

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company is not mandated to have an internal audit system during the year.
In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or

persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b)The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the

()

(d

Xvil.

Xviii.

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group has 8 CICs as part of the Group as detailed in note 49(xii) to the financial statements. We
have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management

sevnnassmata nem A ol
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The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 7,584.09 lacs in the financial year and of Rs.
2,962.45 lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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XIX.

On the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer note 43 to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

o Boseer

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number 504839
UDIN : 24504839BKAUTL9597

- Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024
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. As at Asat
Egrticuiat Nctee March 31,2024 March 31,2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6,497.28 5,198.50
Right-of-use assets 4 30,562.28 26,614.88
Capital work-in-progress 5 39.63 301,65
Other Intangible assets 6 90.37 63.53
Net investment in sub-lease 7 1,640.73 1,097.91
Financial assets
(i) Security deposits 8 1,426.15 1,016.62
(ii) Other financial assets 9 15.69 10.57
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 4,267.91 3,305.11
Non-current tax assets (net) 1 34.18 10.02
Other non- current assets 12 250.24 513.31
Total non- current assets 44,824.46 38,132.10
Current assets
Tuvenlories 13 7,869.27 7,603.58
Financial assets
(ii) Trade receivables 14 865.41 160.31
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 15 9,758.56 172.31
(vi) Other financial assets 16 28.18 43.65
Other currenl assets 17 4,654.06 2,465.17
Total current assets 23,176.38 10,535.02
Total Assets 68,000.84 48.667.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 5,904.97 5,904.97
Other equity 19 (3.778.77) 2,585.19
Total Equity 2,126.20 8,490.16
Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 3,500.00 3,500.00
(ii} Lease liabilities 21 32,888.77 27,077.64
(iii) Other financial liabilities 22 211.10 120.88
Other liabilities 23 112.01 75.90
Employee benefit obligations 24 103.30 153.72
Total non-current liabilities 36,815.18 30,028.14
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 20,906.00 1,136.23
(ii) Lease Liabilities 25 1,912.14 1,699.09
(iii) Trade payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 26 0.50 36.69
enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 4,363.35 4,614.26
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 27 1,026.79 1,378.54
Employee benefit obligations 28 133.71 110.84
Other current liabilities 29 716.97 273.37
Total current liabilities 29,059.46 9,248.82
Total liabilities 65.874.04 40,170.96 |
Total equity and liabilities 68,000.84 48,667.12

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009
e bugenee
Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No. 504839

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 22, 2024 S

J/.

Sooraj Bhat
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

Kok

Tarun Radhakrishin

Tahiliani

Director
DIN : 00045531

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

'\\W‘?&\//

Yogesh Sharma

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

! \/
Ash ikshit
Director

DIN : 01842066

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024

Deepika Jaiswal
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024



Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars Notes Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023

Income:
Revenue from operations 30 10,006.00 4,928.74
Other income 31 1,213.13 147.77
Total income 11,219.13 5,076.51
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed : 32A 982.53 1,445.12
Purchases of traded goods 32C 1,670.63 1,197.67
Changes in inventories of work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods 32B (14.70) (4,400.20)
Employee benefits expense 33 2,263.76 2,001.06
Finance costs 34 4,827.54 1,728.16
Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 6,497.93 2,433.03
Other expenses 36 12,285.33 10,660.42
Total expenses 28,513.02 15,155.26
Loss before tax (17.203.89) (10,078.75)
Income tax expense: 37
Current tax < =
Deferred tax (962.80) (3.310.34)
Total tax expense (962.80) (3,310.34)
Loss for the year (16.331.09) (6,768.41)
Other Comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan 47 (32.87) 20.77
Income tax effect on above = (5.23)
Total other Comprehensive gain, net of tax (32.87) 15.54 |
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (16,363.96) (6,752.87)
Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share ¥ 10 (March 31, 8
2024 :T10)] 3
(1) Basic (276.57) (155.36)
(2) Diluted (276.57) (155.36)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009

T @o&"““‘
Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No. 504839

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

-~

Sooraj Bhat

Chief Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
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Tarun Radhakrishin
Tahiliani

Director

DIN : 00045531

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

-

Yogesh Sharma

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

Ashish Dikshit

Director
DIN : 01842066

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024

Deepika Jaiswal
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024



Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2024
{All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

9600 L4 750 - 13

Particulars Year ended March 31,2024 | Year ended March 31,2023
Loss before tax (17,293.89) (10,078.75)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 6,497.93 2,433.03
Finance costs 4,827.54 1,728.16
Interest income on fixed deposits {1.30) (8.56)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits. (257.57) (106.26)
(Net Gain) from investments in mutual funds (5.73) (14.55)
(Gain) on termination of lease (936.27) -
(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (12.26) 193]
Operating Loss before working capital changes (7,181.55) (6,045.00)
Change in working capital

(Increase)/Decrense in inventories (175.69) (4,996.37)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (705.10), (152.92)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets and security deposits (683.70) (609.70)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current assets (2,189.79) (1,741.45)
(Inerease)/ Decrease in trade payables (287.10) 2,994.55
(Inerease)/ Decrease in other current liabilities 443.80 206.10
(Increase)/Deerease in other current financial liabilities (1.92) 204.21
(Increase)/Decrease in other non current financial liabilities 90.22 120.88
(Increase)/Decrease in other non current liabilities 36.11 75.90
(Increase)/Decrease in employee benefit obligations (60.42) 63.67
Cash generated from operations (10,715.14) {9,880.13)
Ineame taxes paid (24.16) (2.55)
Net cash flows from operating activities (10,739.30) (9,882.68)
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress (3,950.14) (4,459.19)
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits with financial institutions (5.12) 33.45
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 597.34 (9.51)
Interest received 130 8.56
Proceeds from sale of investments 573 1.248.85]
Net cash used in investing activities (3,350.88) (3,177.84)
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares - 11,380.81
Proceeds from Share Application money pending atlotment 10,000.00 -
Pioceeds from borrowings 20,906.00 13,753.60
Repayvment of borrowings (1,136.23) (9,253.60)
Payment of lease liabilities (2,202.06) (1,063.34)
Interest on lease liabilities (3,442.91) . (1,479.14)
Interest on borrowings (1,384.63) (249.02)
(Gain) on termination of lease 936.27 -
Net cash flows from/(used) in financing activities 23,676.44 13,089.31
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9.586.26 28.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 172.31 7.29
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,758.56 36.08
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand (refer note 15) 0.19
Balances with banks: (refer note 15)

- On current accounts 9,686.62 6.64
- Deposits with original malurity of less than three months 2.06 148.64
Balance with e-wallet & credit card companies 69.88 16.84
Bank overdrafts (refer note 20) - (136.23)
Total cash and eash equivalents 9.758.56| 36.08

Notes:

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".
The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009
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Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No. 504839

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

S
Chief Executive Officer

raj Bhat

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
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Yogesh Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024
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DIN : 01842066

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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Deepika Jaiswal
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024



Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
CIN: U181090HR2021PTC093323
Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital
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Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up No. of Shares Amount
As at March 31, 2022 3:50.00,000 3.500.00
Shares issued during the year 2,40,49,707 2,404.97
As at March 31,2023 5.90.49.707 5.904.97
Shares issued during the year : =
As at March 31,2024 5,90,49,707 5.004.97
Other Equity
Attributable to the equity holders
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Securities Pr Retained earnings Share Appliea.tion Total Other equity
(Refer note 19) (Refer note 19) Money Pending
Allotment
(Refer note 19)
As at April 01, 2022 3,491.18 (3,128.96) - 362.22
Shares issued during the year 8,975.84 - - 8,975.84
Loss for the year - (6,768.41) - (6,768.41)
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan - 15.54 - 15.54
As at March 31, 2023 12,467,02 (9,881.83) - 2.585.19
As at April 01, 2023 12,467.02 (9,881.83) - 2,585.19
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Loss for the year - (16,331.09) - (16,331.09)
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan - (32.87) - (32.87)
Share application money received - - 10,000.00 10,000.00
As at March 31,2024 12,467.02 (26,245.79) 10,000.00 (3,778.77)

The above statement of change in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009
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Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No. 504839

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

Sooraj Bhat
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024
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Tarun Radhakrishin
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Director

DIN : 00045531

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

o

Yogesh Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Place; Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

Dikshit

Director
DIN : 01842066

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024

v

Deepika Jaiswal
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1.

Corporate information

Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited (the “Company”), a private company domiciled in India, is
incorporated on March 03, 2021 under the provisions of the Companies Act,2013. The registered office
of the Company is located at P No 708, Sector 37, Pace City II, Gurgoan, Haryana— 122001.

The Company is primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading of readymade garments being men’s
ethnic wear like apparel, jewellery and related accessories. The Company is principally engaged in
business under the brand name TASVA.

The financial statements have been approved and adopted by the Board in their meeting held on May
22,2024,

2. Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following which
have been measured at fair value:

¢  Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.
(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see
below), and are effective 1 April 2023:

¢ Disclosure of accounting policies — amendment to Ind AS 1

e Definition of accounting estimate — amendment to Ind AS 8. _

o Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction — amendments to
Ind AS12

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes would be
necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy
already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

(iv) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting
period. The actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods.
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Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(a) Employee benefit plans

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discounting rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discounting rate. In determining the appropriate
discounting rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government
bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates.

(b) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits.

(¢) Provision on inventories
The Company provides for inventories based on policy, past experience, current trend and future
expectations of these materials depending on the category of goods.

(d) Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies

mdcarmant in avoliatina vwrhathar 336 waacanahle aartain +4 avaration tha Antian +4 rananr ar tarminoto tha
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lease. It considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise
or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.
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Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(e) Going concern

The management of the Company, based on the financial projections, is confident that the Company's
sales would grow, and profitability would improve. Further, Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited
(Holding Company), confirming its financial and operational support to the Company for its continued
operations in future, which will permit it to discharge its liabilities, as and when they fall due, and
continue to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared by
the management assuming going concern which contemplates realization of assets and settlement of
liabilities in the normal course of business.

(v) Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee () which is the functional currency of the
Company. All amounts are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.
(vi) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

T e o e

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acqulsltlon of assets for processmg and the1r realization in
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Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31,2024

(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss, during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset estimated by the management.
Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition. Depreciation on deletions/ disposals is
provided on a pro rata basis upto the month preceding the month of deletions/ disposals. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has used the following rates
to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed assets:

(a) Assets where useful life is same as Schedule IT

Assets Useful life as prescribed by Schedule 11
of the Companies Act, 2013

Office equipment’s 5 years

Electrical fittings, installations and equipment’s 10 vears

(b) Assets where useful life differs from Schedule I1

Assets Useful life as prescribed by Estimated
Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, |useful life
2013
Plant and machineries 15 years 20 years
Furniture and fixtures — retail stores 10 years 5 years
Furniture and fixtures — other than retail stores 10 years 7 years
Vehicles 10 vears 5 years
3 years for end user devices and 6 years |4 years
Computers for servers

Usetul life of assets different from that prescribed in Schedule II has been estimated by the management, supported by technical a

Leasehold assets

Assets Useful life as prescri-bed by
Schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013

Leasehold improvements at stores 5 years or period of lease, whichever is
lower

Leaschold improvements other than stores Period of lease

Interiors have been treated as part of leasehold improvements. Therefore, useful life shall be based on period of lease.
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Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date when the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted fiur any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Right to use assets (refer note 40) 30,562,208 26,61.4.88

30.562.28 26,614.88

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and movements during the year

Buildings
As at March 31, 2022 6,982.74
Addition 21,569.34
Less: Amortlsation expense (1,937.20)
As at March 31, 2023 26,614.88
Addition 14,880.99
Less: Disposal (6,650.36)
Less: Amortisation expense (4,283.23)
As at Mar 31,2024 go‘§62.28
. n As at As at
5 Capital work-in-progress March 31,2024  March g1.2023
Capital work-in-progress 39.63 301.65
39.63 301.65
Ageing of Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)
As at Mar 31,2024
Particulars Less than1 1-2 2-3 Morethan Total
vear years vears 2 vears
Projects in progress 21.09 7.64 - - 0.6
Total 231.00 7.64 - - 32.6§
As at March 31,2023
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
year years years 3years
Projects in progress 301.65 - - - 301.65 |
Total 301.65 - - - 301.65

6 Other intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economnic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statemnent of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation methods and periods
A sumimary of amortisation policies applied to the Company’s intungible assets is as below:

Intangile Assets Useful life |Amortisation method used
Computer Software 3 years Amortised on straight-line basis
Particulars Computer
Software
Cost
As at March 31, 2022 61.16
Add: Additions 34.00
As at March 31,2023 95.16
Add: Additions 69,78
As at March 31,2024 164,04
Amortisation
As at March 31, 2022 10,71
Add: Amortisation for the year 20.92
Less: Disposals -
As at March 31,2023 31.63
Add: Amortisation for the year 42.94
Less: Disposals -
As at March 31,2024 74.57
Netblock
As at March 31,2024 90.37
As at March 31,2023 63.53

Note: The Company has not revalued its intangible assets.
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o 1 ey As at As at
: R March 31,2024  March 31,2023
Net investment in sub-lease 1,640.73 1,097.91
1.640.73 1,097.91
. q As at As at
Security deposits March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Unsecured - considered good
Security deposits 1.426.15 1,016.62
n Asat Asat
Other financial assets March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Deposit account with Bank (Original Maturity of more than 12 months) 15.69 10.57
15.69 10.57
Asat As at
Deferred tax assets (net) March 31,2024  March 31,2023
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 4,267.91 3,305.11
4,267.91 3,305.11
Particulars Tax losses Defined Depreciation |Impactof Ind |Other Total
and benefit and AS 116
Unabsorbed |obligations |amortisation
depreciati
As at 31 March 31, 2022 - - - - - -
(Charged)/ Credited
- to statement of profit and loss 3:033.80 4.99 (26.82) 238.02 59.44 3,310.34
- to other comprehensive income - (5.23) - - - (5.22)
As at March 31, 2023 3.033.80 {0.24) (26.82) 238.03 59.44 3,305.11
(Charged)/ Credited
- to statement of profit and loss 962.80 - - - - a62.80
- to other comprehensive income - - = = = =
As at March 21,2024 3.006.60 {0.24) (26.82) 238.03 59.44. 4,267.91
As at As at
Non-current tax assets (net) March .0 Mareh 51702
Income tax receivable 34.18 10.02
34.18 10.02
As at As at

Other non- current assets

Unsecured - considered good
Capital advance

Inventories

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

250.24 513.31
250.24 513.31

Inventories including stores and spares are valued al the lower of cost and the net realisable value. The Cost of individual items of inventory are determined using
weighted average method. Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

At lower of cost or net realisable value

Raw materials
Spares & Consumables
‘Work-in-progress

Finished goods {includes goods in transit of Rs. 372.25 lakhs (March 31, 2023 113.95 lakhs)}
lradea goods {Includes goods 1n transit ot Rs, 108.12 lakhs (March 31, 2023 27.12 lakhs)}

Total

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
1,053.23 816.50
43.41 119.15
654.47 764.23
4,395.22 4,803.52
1,722.94 1,190.18
';‘Sﬁg.z:r ﬁ"ﬂﬁ'ﬁ

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 657 lakhs (March 31, 2022 — Rs. 61.37 lakhs ). These were recognised as an expense during the
year and included in ‘changes in value of inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods’ in the statement of profit and loss.
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Trade receivable

Qo0 -Liteo ~92.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects Company's unconditional

right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain
significant financing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Trade receivables from others 865.41 160.31
Total trade receivable 865.41 160.31
Break-up for trade receivables:
Trade receivables
Considered good, unsecured 865.41 160.31
865.41 160.31
Aging of trade receivables
As at March 41,2024
Outstanding for the following vears from due date
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than o
‘otal
6 months 1 vear vears vears 3 vears
Undisputed Trade receivables
- considered good - 225.20 54012 - - - 863.41
- which have significant increase
in credit risk = = = I < . =
- eredit impaired - - - - - - -
Total Trade receivables - 325.20 540.12 - - - 865.41
Aging of trade receivables
As at March 31,2023
Outstanding for the following vears from due date
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than T
otal
6 months 1year years years 3 years
Undisputed Trade receivables
- considered good - 160.31 - - - - 160.31
- which have significant increase
in credit risk - . ) )
- eredit impaired - - - - - - -
Total Trade receivables - 160.31 - - - - 160.31

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.

‘Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days.
The Company creates allowance for all trade receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss model (ECL). The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. Based on the evaluation made by the management, no
expected credit loss has been recognised in the current year and previous year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank:
-On current accounts

-Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand

Balance with e-wallet & credit card companies

Total

Other financial assets

Unsecured - considered good
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Other receivables

Other current assets

Unsecured - considered good

Right to recover returned goods (refer note 29)

Brarnbd puenaness

Balance with government authorities

Advance to suppliers
Other advances

As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31,2023
9,686.62 6.64
2,06 148.64
- 0.19
69.88 16.84
9,758.56 172.31

As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31,2023
0.79 0.79
27.39 42.86

28.18 43.65
As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

279.00 54.48
Dok 23,00
4,004.02 2,301.37
290.81 68.24
0.17 -
4,654.96 2.465.17
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18 Equity share capital

Authorized share capital No. of Shares Amount

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each

At March 31, 2022 4,00,00,000 4,000.00
Increase during the year 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
At March 3.1,2023 6,50.00,000 6,500.00
Increase during the year = -
At March 31,2024 __géo,oo,ooo 6&00.00
L hare capital No. of Shares Amount

Fully paid up

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued and subscribed

At March 31, 2022 3,50,00,000 3,500.00
Increase during the year 2,40,49,707 2,404.97
At March 31,2023 0. 0

Increase during the year -

At March 31,2024 5,90.49.707

a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of % 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

b) Shares held by Holding Company
Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 81,2023
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited (Holding Company) 4,72,39,761 4,72,39,761
47,239,761 (March 31, 2023: 47,239,761) equity shares of Rs 10 each
c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Number % Holding Number % Holding
Eauitv shares
Aditya Birla Fashion and 4,72,39,761 80.00% 4,72,39,761 80.00%
Tarun Tahiliani 1,18,09,941 20.00% 1,18,09,941 20.00%
5.90.49.702 100.00% 5.90.49.702 100.00%
d) Details of Shareholding of Promoters:
Shares held by promoters as at Mar 31,2024
% of total .
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares number of g C:‘a“ge during the
shares yea
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 4,72,39,761 80.00% -
Tarun Tahiliani 1,18.09,941 20.00% -
Shares held by promoters as at March 31,2023
% of total )
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares number of & C:lange ducingihe
shares yea
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 4.72.39,761 80.00%
Tarun Tahiliani 1.18.09,941 20.00%

e) There were no shares issued for consideration other than cash during the year ended March 31,2024 and year ended March 31, 2023.
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19 Other Equity

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Securities premium 12,467.02 12,467.02
Retained earnings R (26,245.79) (9,881.83)
Share Application Money pending Allotment 10,000.00 =
Total (3,778.77) 2,585.19
Note: The shares are subsequently alloted on May 9, 2024.

Amount

(i) Securities premium
At March 31, 2022 3,491.18
Premium on issue of shares 8,975.84
At March 31,2023 12,467.02
Premium on issue of shares -
At Mar 31,2024 12,467.02_
(ii) Retained earnings
At March 31, 2022 (3,128.96
Loss for the year (6,768.41)
Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan 15.54
At March 31,2023 (9.881.83)
Loss for the year > (16,331.09)
Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan (32.87)
At March 31,2024 (26.245.79)

(iii) Share Application Money pending allotment
At March 31, 2022

Share application money received

At March 31, 2023

Share application money received

At March 31, 2024

10,000.00

10,000.00

R>
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20 B " Asal Asat

S March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-current

Sccured

Term Loan from Bank A SO0 L0000

Oulstanding term loan of Rs.5000 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 3500 lakhs) Laken from ICICI Bank which is secured by way of charge

over movable Property, plant and equipment of the Company. The loan is repayable in 10 equal quarterly instalments starting from

quarter ended September 2024.The rate of interesl on loan is 1 year Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR) per annum

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowing is included in current borrowings is Rs.1500 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Nil)

Current

Secured

Demand Loan from Bank - 1,000500

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowing 1,500.00 =

Inter Corporate Deposit 19,406.00 .

Bank Overdraft

Total 1 L 1

Demand loan was taken from ICICI Bank in two tranches of Rs. 500 lakhs each. The same was secured by First Pari-Passu charge on all current assets and second pari-passu
charge on movable property, plant and equipment of the Company. The rate of interest on loan was Repa Rate plus spread of 2.05% per annum.The loan wes repaid fully in

Jan'24.

Bank overdraft has been taken (rom ICICI Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on all current assets and second pari-passi: charge on movable property, plant and
equipment of the Company. The loan is repayable on demand. The rate of interest on loan is 6 months Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR) + 1 % spread per annum

There is no default in repayment of loan installments or paymenl of interest thereon as per the terms and conditions of loan taken from related party.

1. The Company has registered/satisfied all the charg, required with Registrar of Companies within the statutory period,
2, The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specifie purpose for which it was taken

Asal Assl
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Nt Debt eeeonvillation
Cash and cash equivalents 9,758.56 172,31
Non- eurrent borrowings (3,500.00) (3,500.00)
Current borrowings (20,906.00) (1,136.23)
Lease Liabilities {114 Mowoy a8 70T

Net Debt {40.448.35) Ly ugo.65)

21 Lease liabilities

A the ccenmencvment date o
mpany = incremeital by

o e b, Uhve Company rocig e b Fialiifines mpessured at the proseat vifug of oz payisonts 1o be miadé over th Tease term, discounted usdng

ving it The lisse prsynents s wde fised poy'ments (and, ib sotse instanees, inssulstunee fSded payients) lov uny lease incentives peeiable

ved oo . e ¢ e amoumts cxpocted 1o be |uu1 under rowidusl vadue guarantecs. The lease paymentsala ind ude the exeorcb prioo of o

the Company and paymeentsof penall m‘lhr Bestne:, |Ia lease torm pefleets the Company cxnecialng the optlon
= i whi

In additon, the carrying wmmant of beaoss fiabilithes b re-micasured if there i a modification arising due 10 change 1o the Iease kerm, change in the lease payments i a charige in the
onesametit of an option to pisches e anderhing asset. when the boase lability s re 1 1 this way, is made to the carrying aussunt of the right-
ol st o B reccadind by ol o s 1 fhe carmydrg atmount of the dght=cfrase soet hes been moduoed 10 zero,

The Company epplies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (i.e., those leases that have  lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencerment i4sts aii| do not contain a purkuiss option). Tt i applies the lowse of lowsvalte sty svwgnition exemptinn o kesses if office equipment that are considered to be
il o assets are e svur the lease lerm.

low value. Lease puymcnits on short-term lesss i expesise on o straight-line bus
As at As at
March L] Mareh 31,203
Non Currenl
Lense liabilities Wt EF—PH
22,888.77 27,077.64
The following is the lease liabilities movement Asat Asat

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at beginning of the year 28,776.73 717283
Addilions during the year 14,840.99 22,667.24
Disposals during the year (7.591.02) L
Finance cost incurred during the year (refer note 34) 3,442,901 1,479.14
Payment of lease liabilities (4,708.70) (2,542.48)
Balance at end of the year Jgfo0.a as el
Non Current (refer note 21) 32,888.77 27,077.64
Current (refer note 25) 1,012.14 1,699.09
——AESOR SR ZRZ)
T As at Asat
22 Other financial liabilhies March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Non-current
Security deposils i bE
[FIRLS
R As at Asal
ZaJOthegLinbilitics March 33,002y March 31,2007
Deferred income o) > nn
daol Zxgo,
q Asat As at
24 Employee bencfit obligations March a1.2024 March 31,2023
Non-current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 47) 76.23 52.38
Provision for stock appreciation right (refer note 48) 27.07 30.07
Provision for Employee stock option plan (refer note 48) . T
103.30 153.72
. Asat Asat
25 Lease liabllities March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Current

Lease liabilities




Fooo U760 ~24

Tnelivinity Clothing Retall Peivite Limited

CIN: oaliRaoa PTCog; 2y

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Allamounts are in? Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Asal Asal
26 Trade Payables March 31,2024  March 31,2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprisus 26.69
EROEN

Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total At Ny 405995

Aglng of trade payablc

L]
Critstuneding as oo Marel 31,200 froom die date of payinest {
Particulars =
articulars Unbilled Notdue Lessthans | o0 2-3 Years More than g Total
Year Years
Unddbsputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises . Sy - . . . 0.50
A bers 1,710,608 L4R0.00 iLigTRy 14KD . - PR
Total 10,68 (LD [FE = - 8
Aglng of trade payable
As nt Mnreh ji.zoay
fing an on Maech s from doe dute of
Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 1 Morelhan 3
1-2 Years, 2-3 Years Total
Year Yenrs
Undisgputed trade paynbies
Miéro entvapries and senall vaterpiiae : = 525 5 > z 36.69
< Hbres, LT igsia 1T = -
[ Tastal (L Dl LEER6G 19500 inde! = =

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) w hich came into force from October 2, 2006, certain disclosure are required to be made relaling
to Miero and Smalt Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, there are outstanding dues Lo the Miero and Small Enterprises under
MSMED Act, 2006.

The following disclosure are required under section 22 of MSMED act, 2006 under the chapler of delayed payment Lo micro and small enlerprises:

[ Lo Micro small and medium eoderpbwes:

Puitiulirs, Mnrc:‘;:‘zoa‘t Mnrclﬁ?fzozs
Frincipal amaount dise b suppliers registened under the MSMED Act and remuining tnpak] as af yvar el asn 36,59
Interest e bo suphliem rogistenod wider the MEMED Avtind reimaining ungsaid as at year vol. AT 12,32
Frincipal amsnnts pokd to suppdies pegistinsd under th MSMED Art, beyond the appointed day during the ywar, [ ¥} -
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Acl, to suppliers regisiered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the N
year,

Interest paid, ather than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day

during the year. = £

Aol of interest dibo and ayable for the sear of thelay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) bul iwitheist wklitg (e Itezest specified under the MSMED Act . .

| The aunvenit o Irtutesd sccraiesd and remaining unpaid at the end of accounling year. 19.57 12.92

Amount of further 1nterest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dale when the interest dues above are

actually paid to the smafl enterprise, for the purpose of disall of a deduetib), ture under section 23 of the MSMED Act . 3
Asat As al

[l inl liabi
27 Other financial liabil March 31,2024  March 31,2023

Current
Creditors for capital supplivs/ services 707.50 1,057.03
Employ ee benefits payable S
] G
R As at
28 Employee benefit obligations o Murch xn.at
Provision for gratuily (refer nele 47) 8.23 360
Provision for comipensated absences 12548 107.24
133.71 110.84

The entire amounl of provision of Rs. 125,48 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 107.24 Lakhs) is presented as current, since Lhe Company does not have an uncondilional right Lo defer
settlement for any of these obligatiuns. However, based on past experience, the Company does nol expect all employees to avail the full amouat of accrued leaves o reguire payment
for such leave within the next 12 months.

Leave obligalion not expecled to be settled within the next 12 months TR Krot

29 Other current liabilities
Current
Refund liability
Statutory liabilities

Refund liabilitics

Where a customer has a right to return a product within a given year, the Company rwegiines = rofusd lisbiity for the amount of thy reverse recognised for
which entity docs not expect Lo be entitled Rs. 487.69 Lakhs (March 31, 2023:- 123,06 Lk} The Comgpuny als ricognises right 1o reusaver the returned goods for
Rs. 279.00 Lakhs (March 131, 202 t: 54.48 lakhs), See Note 1. The costs to recorer nroducts are nnt material as the rustnmers wenally refiien in a aalrable conditon
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30 Revenue from operations

Rrvenue frotn contract with custumens

4epo U 7o~ 27

" The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacluring and retailing high end garments, Revenue from with
conlrol of Lhe geods / services is transferred (o cuslomer at an amount thal refleets consideration Lo which the Company expects (o be c.nhl]cd in u:changz for

thuse gouds or senices.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the {ollowing five-step approach:
«Identify ke conlract with a customer;

«Idenlify Lhe performance obligalions in the contracl;

«Delermine the ransaclion price;
=Allucate the ion price lo the in the contracl; and
~Recognise revenues when a performance obligation is salisfied.

e bl

(i)Sale of goods- wholesale

d when

The Company manufactures and sells a range of readymade garmenls being men's ethnic wear like apparel, jewellery and relaled accessories 1o the whalesaler,

the wholesaler has full di ion over Lhe

Sales are recognised when control of goods has transferred, being when the producls are

channel and price to sell the pruducts, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the whalesaler’s acceptance uf the produets, Delivery veeurs when the

goods have been shipped to the specific location, the nsks of obsolescence and loss have been

d to the wholesaler, and either Lhe wholesaler has accepled

the produets in aceordance wilh the sales conlract, the aceeplance provisions have lapsed, or Lthe Company has objeclive evidence Lhal all erileria for aceeplance

bave been salisfied.

Revenuc from these sales is recagnised based on Lhe price specified in the conlract. Revenue is anly recognised 1o Lhe extent Lhat it is highly probable thata
significant reversal will nol oceur. A refund liability (included in other current liabililics) is recognised for expecled sales return from cuslomers in relation 1o sales

element of fi

made unlil the end of the ing period. Nu si
cunsislenl wilh markel proetice.

(ii)Sale of goods- retail

is deemed prosenl as the sales are made with a vredit term of 30 days, which is

‘The Cumpany vperates a chuin of retail stures selling readymade garmenls being men's ethnic wear like npp:lreL jewellery nnd relaled accessories. Revenue from

the sale of goods is recognised when Company sells a good to the customer. Payment of the

price is duc i

when Lhe L the

goods and iakes delivery in store. The Company does not have a relurn policy for retail customer and hence no refund liability cresled in the books for retail sale.

Sale of gouds

Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap

d with contract price

Revenue as pet contracled price
Adjustments fur:
Refund liability

31 Otherincome

Tulerest income

- on fixed deposits

Unwinding of discount on security deposits

et gain from investments i mistual funds
Miscellaneous income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmenl
Gain on lermination of lease

Total

32A  Cost of raw materials consumed

Tnventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Inventories at the end of Lhe year

32B Changes in inventories of work in progress, stock In trade and finished goods

Opening inventorics
Work-in-progress
Finished guvds
Traded goods

Closing inventories
‘Work-in-progress
Finished gouds
Traded goods

Changes in Inventories

32C Purchases of traded goods

Traded goods

Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 a1,2023
10,004.98 4,928.74
Lo -
jo,o0fio0 L.928.24
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
10,370.33 5,052.10
b2
10,006,000
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
130 8.56
257-57 106.26
573 14.55
- 1B40
1226 -
AT -
1,200 1L47.77
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
816.50 285.00
1,21926 1,976.62
105728 Hl(r:ﬁll
GH=.53 1,445.1=
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
764.23 911.37
4,803.52 1,285.62
1,190.18 21522
6,757-93 2,412.21
654.47 764.23
4,395-22 4,803.52
1.722.04 119018
6,772.63 6,812.41
(14.70) (4,400.20)
Year ended March Year ended March
b | a0y
867005 100767
1,070,603 1,197.07

\\g
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33

35

36

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and allowances

Contribution to provident fund (refer note 47)
Gratuity expenses (refer note 47)

Staff welfare expense

Provision for stock option plans (refer note 48)
Total

Finance costs

Interest on:

- Lease liabilities

- Working capital loan
- Term Loan

Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)

Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)
Total

Other expenses

Processing charges
Transpartation charges
Store consumables

Advertisement and sales promotion
Rent (refer note 40)

Legal and professional charges
Franchise commission to selling agents
Repair and maintenance

-Others

Travelling and conveyance

Security & Housekeeping expenses
Telephone and Internet

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Printing and stationary

Power, fuel and water charges

Bank charges

Courier charges

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note : Auditor remuneration
Particulars

As auditor:
- Audit fee
- Out of pocket expenses

Qere < U700 - 24

Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
2,058.30 1,926.25
86.64 65.49
22,71 24.26
76.71 67.23
19.40 7.83
2,263.76 2,091.06
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
3:442.91 1,479-14
943.29 232.73
11034 16.29
182754 172816
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
2,171.76 474.91
4,283.23 1,937.20
42.94 20.92
6.497.93 243303
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
2,117.47 3,698.91
108.44 ,91.56
188.41 140.89
4,179.15 3,922.37
435.51 167.25
2,628.16 1,488.51
B882.04 98.89
489.91 195.51
256.93 322.00
224.49 164.15
14.10 6.60
6.75 4.48
23.68 10.67
12.31 2119
54113 235.52
141.21 61.05
3145 22,66
= 1.93
4.19 6.28
12,285.93 10,660.42
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
6.60 6.60
101 0.90
7:61 250,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
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37 Income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year/year ended

Qoeo- UIbo-29

a. Tax exp d in st; of profit and loss
s Year ended March Year ended March
Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax:
(Gains)/losses relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (962.80) (3.305.11)
Income tax effect on above - (5.23)
(962.80) (3,310.34)
I tax (i )/exp recognised in the of profit and loss
b. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
: Year ended March Year ended March
Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Loss before tax (17,293.89) (10,078.75)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (Previous year: 25.168%)
Tax (4,352.53) (2,536.62)
Deferred tax asset not recognized in the absence of reasonable certainty 3,389.72 2,536.62
Impact of deferred tax created unabsorbed losses and depreciation for the year - (769.92)
Tax effect of amounts which are not temporary in nature =
-others - (3.54)
{g6a:80) (531039,
iy Year ended March Year ended March
c compreh
p of other pr (0CD S asny 12022
Re-measurement galn on defined benefit obligation (32.87) 20.77
Income tax effect - (5.23)
Total (32.87) 15.54
38 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the C by the weighted ge number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss atiributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the loss and share data used
for the basic and diluted EPS computation:

Loss attributable to equity holders for basic earnings
Weighted average number of equity shares

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Note: There are no diluted instruments.

Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
(16,331.09) (6,768.41)
59,04,971 43,56,565
(276.57) (155.36)
(276.57) (155.36)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

39 Commitments and contingencies

Capital Commitment

~ U7op - R

The Company has capital commitments of Nil value as at March 31,2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs.513.31 Lakhs)

40 Leases
The Company has entered into agreements for taking on the lease office buildings/stores. Leases of office buildings/stores
generally have lease terms from 3 to 21 years with escalation clauses in the lease agreements.
(i) The amounts recognized in Balance Sheet: As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 30,562.28 26,614.88
Lease Liabilities
Non Current (refer note 21) 32,888.77 27,077.64
Current (refer note 25) 1,912.14 1,699.09
-~ q . . Year ended March Year ended March
(ii) The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss: 31,2024 31,2023
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 34) 3,442.91 1,479.14
Amortisation expense for right-of-use assets (refer note 35) 4,283.23 1,937.20
7,726014 3’416.34
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 435.51 167.25

(iii) The Company has used the following practical expedient:

Accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months treated as short-term leases.

(iv) Extension and Termination option:

Extension and Termination options are included in all the contracts of short term lease and both are exercisable at mutual

consent of Lessor and Lessee.

Sublease:

™)

The Company subleased few leases , the same were orginally considered as finance lease, the original right-of-use asset is
reclassified and recognised as Finance Lease Receivable and the original lease liability is accounted for based on the
accounting for a lease liability in a finance lease. The finance income is recognised over the period of lease.

The amounts recognized in Balance Sheet:

Net investment in sub-lease

Year ended March
31,2024

1,640.73

Moz

Year ended March
31,2023
1,097.91
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

41 Related party disclosures

Gtvo- Yoo ~3)

a. Related parties
Description of relationship

Names of related parties

8) Holding Company

Key management personnel ("KMP")
(a) Chief Designing Officer

(b) Chief Executive Officer

(c) Executive Direclors

(d) Chief Financial Officer
(e) Company Secretary

Entity jointly controlled by the Holding Company

Parties where KMP exercises control

b. Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length tr: i o]

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited

Mr. Tarun Radhakrishin Tahiliani
Mr. Sooraj Bhat

Mr. Ashish Dikshit

Mr. Sooraj Bhat

Mr. Sunirmal Talukdar

Ms. Sukanya Kripalu

Mr. Yogesh Sharma

Ms. Deepika Jaiswal

Goodview Fashion Private Limited
Jaypore Ecommerce Private Limited

Tahiliani Design Private Limited

dine hal

have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Year ended March 31,2024

Entity jointly
Holding Party whe're controlled by
KMP KMP exercises .
Company the Holding
control
Company
Loans received 19,406.00 -
Loan repayment made - ~
Interest expense 845.00 -
Legal and professional charges 231.00 176.00 .
Rent paid - - 32.00 -
Reimbursement of expenses 425.00 8,55 250.00
Purchase of Raw material/Production Services 563.00 0.52 .
Sale of goods 71.00 6.00
1ssue of equity shares - .
Share application money pending allotment 10,000.00

¢. Outstanding balances

The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

As at March 31,2024

Party where  Entily jointly

Holding KMP KMP controlled by
Company excercises the Holding
control Company
Trade payables 223.69 135 200.00
Employee Benefits Payable - . -
Borrowing (Inter corporate deposit) 19,406.00 -
Share application money pending allotment 10,000.00

42 Segment information

at the year/year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There

Year ended March 31,2023

Party where  Enlityjointly

Holding KMP KMP controlled by
Company excercises the Holding
control Company
9.153.60 . 100.00
(9,153.60) - - (100.00)
156.42 - 0.05
100.00 219.05 - 7770
. ~ 3.00 -
134.95 . - 48.56
256.16 . - 5.63
= . . 0.65
9,104.75 2,276.06 -

As at March 31,2023

Party where  Entity jointly

Holding KMP KMP controlled by

Company excercises the Holding
control Company

0.34 28.96

78.11 . 1.61

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the Company is identified as the Chief Operating Decision

Maker ("CODM"), CODM evaluates the performance of the Company based on the single operative segment for the purpose of allocation

‘The Company is domiciled in India and revenue comes from India only. There are no assets held by the Company outside India.

Co CHMr:'d"

ial performance.
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Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

(All amounts are in X Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

44 Fair values

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023.

Qoo - U7so- 33

Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI __Amortised Total Carrying Level 1 Level2 Level3

As at March 31,2024

Financial assets

Investments - - - = =

Security deposits - 1,426.15 1,426.15 - - -

Trade receivables - 865.41 865.41 - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 9,758.56 9,758.56 - -

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - = =

Other financial assets 43.87 43.87 - - =

Total - 12.093.99 12,003.09 z 5 =

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 24,406.00 24,406.00 - =

Lease liabilities - 34,800.91 34,800.91 - -

Trade payables - 4,363.85 4,363.85 - =

Other financial liabilities - 1,297.80 1,237.89 = = -

Total - 64.808.65  64.808.65 = = -
Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI _Amortised Total Carrving Level1 Level2z Level3

As at March 31,2023

Financial assets

Investments - - - =

Security deposits - 1,016.62 1,016.62 -

Trade receivables - 160.31 160.31 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 172.31 172.31 - - -

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -

Oth:ll' financial assets - 54.22 54.22 - - -

Wt - 1.403.46 1,403.46 2 - :

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - 4,636.23 4,636.23 - -

Lease liabilities 28,776.73 28,776.73 - - -

Trade payables - 4,650.95 4,650.95 - - -

Other financial liabilities - 1,490.42 1,499.42 - - -

Total = 20,563.33 - - -

The above table also explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are measured at
amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used
in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian Accounting

Standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath.

Level 1: Fair value of financial instruments traded in active market is based on quoted market price at the end of the reporting year.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfer between levels during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

45 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of lease liabilities, trade payables and employee related payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that
derive directly from its operations. The Company does not enter into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is responsible to ensure that Company’s financial risk activities
which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates
of the debt as at March 31, 2024.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks, This is based on
the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023,

(a) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company has debt obligations with floating interest rates, hence, is exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings
affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s loss before tax is affected through the impact on borrowings, as

follows:
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Basis points (%) 0.50% increase | 0.50% decrease | 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) on loss before tax 122.03 (122.03) 23.18 (23.18)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in the prior years.

(b) Foreign currency risk
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as at reporting date.

(ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. To manage this, the Company yearically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counterparties,
taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial
assets. Individual risk limits are set and yearically reviewed on the basis of such information. Credit risk from balances with
banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
rrandarme ek e

The Company only deals with parties which has good credit rating given by external rating agencies or based on the Company’s
internal assessment.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable dues where recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and security deposits).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Quistanding customer receivables are regularly monitored,

The majority of the sales of the Company happens in cash The Company does not have significant trade receivables, An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The caleulation is based on
exchange losses historical data. The maximum exposure to eredit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets disclosed helow. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of

risk with respect to trade receivables as low on the basis of past default rates of its customers.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s

policy, Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty. Counterparty eredit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be
updated throughout the vear subject to approval of the Company’s finance committee. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments,

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds.
The Company’s financing activities are managed centrally by maintaining an adequate Tevel of cash and cash equivalents to
finance the Company's operations. The Company has substantial trade receivable balance which is expected to be recovered
within 12 months. The Company also uses cash credit and bank loans as a mode of funding. The Company manages its surplus
funds centrally by placing them with reputable financial institution with high credit rating and no history of default.

The below tables summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments

(undiscounted basis):

Less than 1
et 1to 5 years More than 5 years
As at March 31,2024
Trade payables 4,363.85 - -
Borrowings 20,906.00 3,500.00 -
Lease liabilities 6,492.39 34,109.92 14,932.97
Other financial liabilities 1.026.7Q 211.10 -
3&,282.03 37.821.02 14.932.97
Less than 1
Vear 1to 5years More than 5 years
As at March 31,2023
Trade payables 4,650.95 - =
Borrowings 1,136.23 3,500.00 -
Lease liabilities 4,204,16 22,530.72 19,429,26
Other financial liabilities 1.378.54 120.88 -
—11.369.88 26,160.60 19.429:26

46 Capital management

The Company’s objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going coneern operation and to maintain an efficient capital
strueture to reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder's expectations. The policy of the
Company is to borrow through banks/ financial institutions supported by committed borrowing facilities to meet anticipated
funding requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirement of financial markets, The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of
Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. Funding requirements are reviewed periodically with any debt issuances.

Lhe tollowing table summarizes the capital of the company (debt excludes lease liabilities) :

Short term Debts ( include current maturity of long term borrowings)
Long-term-Debts

Total Borrowings

Equity

As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31,2023
20,906.00 1,136.23
3:500.00 3:500.00
24,406.00 4,636.23
2,126.20 8,490.16

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets

financial covenants attached to the interest - bearing loans and borrowings.
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47 Defined Contribution and Defined benefit Plans

O]

(i)

A. Defined contribution plans

(i) Employers' contribution to Provident Fund

The Company has defined contribution plan in form of Provident Fund for qualifying employees, Contributions are made 1o provident fund for
employees at the rate of 12% of salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to Employee Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO)
registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligation of the Campany is limited 1o the amount contributed and
it has no further contractual or constructive obligation.

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 86.64 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 65.49 Lakhs)

B. Defined benefit plans

The Company operates gratuity plan through u Trust wherein every emplayee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last
drawn for each completed year of service, The same is payable on termination of service or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests
after five years of continuous service. In case of some employees, the Company's scheme is more favourable as compared (o the obligation
unider Paymoent of Gratuily Act, 1972. A part of the gratuity plan is funded and another part is ma naged within the Company, henee the lability
has been bifurcated into funded and unfunded.

The Company contributes to the Fund based on the actuarial valuation report. The Company has contributed to the Insurer Managed Fund
(managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India), details of which is available in the table of Investment pattern of plan assets. Based on
which, the Company-is nol exposed to any market risk.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet for

the respective plans:

Changes in the Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) are as follows:
Year ended March Year ended March

312024 312023
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 55.97 55.32
Current service cost 20.55 19.58
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 216 4.68
Changes in financial assumptions 1.83 (3.02)
Experience adjustments 31.04 (17.75)
Benefits paid - (15.:39)
Acquisition adjustment 12,55
Closing defined benefit obligation at the end of year §5.97
Classification of Defined benefit obligation
Currenl 823 3.60
Non-current 76.23 52.38

Net benefit expense recognised through the Statement of Profit and Loss and other other comprehensive income

Total exp T ised in the S of Profit or Loss
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023

Current service cost ’ 20.55 19.58
Past service cost - -
Net interest cost/(income) on the net defined benefit lin bility/(asset) 2.16 4.68
Tolal Expense recognised under employee bonefits expense (refer note 33) 22.71 24.26
Total expenses recognised in the other comprehensive income

Changes in demographic assumptions -

Changes in financial assumptions 1.83 (3.02)

Experience adjustments 104 (17.75)
Total 32.87 (20.77)

ﬂc.r
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(i)

(iv]

(v,

i)

(vii)

)

<

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity defined benefit obligations for the Company are shown below:
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Discount rate 7.20% 7.45%
Salary Growth rate 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement age 60 60
Attrition rate
Upto 30 Years 18.00% 18.00%
31-40 Years i5.00% 15.00%
Above 40 Years 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14
The following represents expected cash flow profile for the defined benefit plan in future years :
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Within the next 12 months 8.23 3.60
Between 2 and 5 years 30.55 19.21
Between 6 and 10 years 39.40 25.97
Bevond 10 vears 107.25 8275
Total 185.43 131.53

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Impact of defined benefit obligation - increase/ (decrease)

Year ended March Year ended March
q1.2024 312023
Defined Benefit obligation (Base) 84.46 55.97
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Sensitivity level
Discount rate (-/+ 0.5%) 385 (3.59) 2.73 (2.54)
Salary growth rate (-/+ 0.5%) (3.59) 3.81 (2.54) 271
Attrition rate (-/+ 50%) 20.69 (9.89) 15.33 (7.72)
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) {0.10) 0.09 (0.07) 0.07

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation
to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the repotting year) has been applied as when calculating the Defined benefit recognised in the balance sheet. The
methods and types of assumptions used in preparation, the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior year.

Risk Exposures

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will
also increase the liability.

ivesUmenL KISK: AT F12n 1s runded then assets habilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed
at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Defined benefit liability and employer contribution

The Company monitors the deficit in defined benefit obligation and endevours to meet such deficit within reasonable future. The objective is
to ensure adequate investments of funds, at appropriate time, to generate sufficient corpus for future payments.

\\‘a—
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48 Equity Settled share option plan

The amounts recognized in Balance Sheel:
Particulars
Provision for Employee stock option plan (Refer table (i) below)
Provision for stock apprecialion right (Refer table (ii) below)
Total

The amounts recognized in Statement of Profit & loss
Particulars

Provision for stock option plans
Total

(i) Employce stock option plan

GQyvo- uee ~ 34

As at Asat
March 31.20: March 31,202
27.07
27.07
Year ended March
ded M

91,2094 Year ended March 31,2023
19.40 7.83
19.40 7-83

Adilya Birla Fashions and Relail Limited (Holding Company) has implemented a shiare option plan for the members of managemenl including of the Company. Each share option
converts into one ordinary share of Aditya Birla Fashions and Reluil Limited on exercise, Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company before the options vest. The
allocation of share option plan has been made by the Holding Company , the Nomination and Remuneration Committee andl the Board of Directors (“Board"), approved
introduction of Employee Stock Option Scheme, viz. Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 (“Scheme 2019”) through trust route, for issue of
Stock Options in the form of Options (“Options”) and/or Restricted Stack Units (“RSUs”) to the identified employees of the Company. Refer below for the details of Plan. The
shares will be issued post payment of consideration to Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited and hence the same has been treated as liability.

ESOP Plans details Grant Date | Vesting Date | Exercise date (v::ll:,l[?nyt:;; Fagp‘:;::: ofiffas (ab;r:lt:csl;laa:!:)s(;u s (‘;Gr?);csi;-nz:-’:so)zs

ESOP- Tranche 1 -1st Vesting 2-Dec-2010 | 2-Dec-2020 2-Dec-2025 12 96.00

ESOP- Tranche 1- 2nd Vesting 2-Dec-2010 2-Dec-2021 3-Dec-2026 24 110.10 - 10,455 |
ESOP- Tranche 1- grd Vesting 2-Dec-2010 2-Dec-2022 2-Dec-2027 36 115.76 - 10.455 |
ESOP-Tranche 1 - 4th Vesting 2-Dec-2019 2-Dec-2023 1-Dec-2028 48 125.24 - 10.435
ESOP-Tranche 3-_1st Vesting 21-Jan-2021 | 21-Jan-2022 | 21-Jan-2027 12 76.78 - 14957
ESOP-RSU- Tranche 1- Bullet Vesting] 2-Dec-2019 2-Dec-2022 2-Dec-2027 36 216.18 - 11,558 |
Total - 57:880|

(ii} Stock Appreciation Righls

Aditya Bitla Fashions and Relail Limited (Holding Company) has implemented SAR- Stock appreciation Rights a share option plan for the members of senior management
including of the Company. The SARs compensation cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over the total vesting year . Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company
before the options vest. The granting of Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs") has been made by the Holding Company to the eligible employees of the Company, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee approved plan as on November 03, 2021. The shares will be issued post payment of consideration to Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited and hence

the same has been treated as liability.

e . N . L Vesting year | Fair Value of | As at March 31,2024 As al March 31,2023
SAR Plan Delails Grant Date | Vesting Date | Exercise date (In Months) Options (No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 15t Vesting 18-Aug-aost | 18-Aug-2022 | 18-Aug-2025 12 52.68 3.626 10.455 |
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 2nd Vesting 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2023 | 18-Aug-2026 24 75.75 26236 10.455
SAR's- Tranche 2 - ard Vesting 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2024 | 14- 0z 36 84.00 3,636 10,455 |
SAR's- Tranche 1 - Bullet Vesting 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2024 | 19-Aug-2027 26 206.08 2,015 8.668
Total 13,923 40.033 |
: - . Vesting year | Fair Value of | As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
SAR Plan Delails Grant Dale | Vesting Date [Exercise date (In Months) Options (No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 151 Vesting FoAug-aone | S-Augoosy | 5-Aug-2086 12 4527 3980 8,396
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 2nd Vesting 5-Aug-2022 | 4-Aug-2024 5-Aug-2027 24 64.3 3.080 8.396 |
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 3rd Vesting 5-AUE-2022 | 4-Aug-2025 -Aug-2028 36 77.10 3,980 8.396
SAR's- Tranche 5 - Bullet Vesting 5-Aug-2020 | g-Aug-2025 | 4-Aug-2028 36 195.88 7.937 8.680
Total 19,877 33.568
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@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(%]

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

50

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I11

Details of benami property held.

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami )
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowing secured against all current assets

The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of all current assets. The Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits of Rs. 2000 lakhs from bank on the basis of security of current assets. The bank has explained to the
Company that there is no need for the Company to file the quarterly returns or statements.

Wilful defaulter

None of the entities in the Company have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

1. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or

2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

1. Directly or indirectly lend or inves. in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

2, Provide any guarantce, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Undisclosed Income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets.

Relationship with struck off Companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Group (Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited) has 8 CICs (registered and unregistered) as part of the Group.

Going concern
The management of the Company, based on the financial projections, is confident that the Company's sales would grow and profitability
would improve. Further, the Company net worth position is positive and comany is sucessfully able to raise the fund through right
issues and its working capital position is also positive after adjusting inter corporate deposit received from Holding company and thus
permit it to discharge its liabilities, as and when they fall due, and continue to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, these financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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51. Other accounting policies
(i) Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in capital work in progress account. At the point
when an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction
is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the
commissioning of an asset are capitalised when the asset is available for use but incapable of operating
at normal levels until the period of commissioning has been completed. Capital work in progress is
stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

(ii) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception, all arrangements to determine whether they are, or contain,
a lease. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assess whether:
o The contract involves the use of an identified asset;
¢ The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and
¢ The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company therefore accounts if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company is not a lessor in any transactions, it is
only a lessee.

Company is the lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of lew-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Company is the lessor

For leases considered as finance lease, the original right-of-use asset is reclassified and recognised as Net
Investment in lease and the original lease liability is accounted for based on the accounting for a lease
liability in a finance lease. The finance income is recognised over the period of lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining the operating lease are added to
the carrying value of the underlying assets and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

(iii) Financial accete
A. Classification and initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the asset. The Company determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. The Company classifies the financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

¢ Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through profit or loss, or through other
comprehensive income) '
¢ Those measured at amortised cost
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The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not
contain a significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through protit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets are
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when the same are managed by the
Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is evaluated on fair value basis in
accordance with a risk management or investment strategy of the Company. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit ar Inse
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

N
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@(iv)

When the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
receivables.

Income recognition - Interest

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes borrowings, lease liability, trade and other payables.
Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss)

are deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial liability. Financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised.

De-recognition of financial liability
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or

transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance cost.

Ne
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)

(vi)

(a)
(b)

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Fair value measurements and hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which
sufficient data are available to measure the fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks:

Level 1 - inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

%
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(vii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

(viii) Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(ix) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(x) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other
gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilitv for at least 12 manths after the renarting narind

(xi) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements.

(xii) Retirement and other employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

(A

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.
Defined contribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund, which are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows bv reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Comnensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the

same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

.
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(e) Share based payments

Employees of the Group (Companies forming part of Aditya Birla Group) receive remuneration in the
form of equity-settled instruments and stock appreciation rights for rendering services over a defined
vesting period. Equity settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date using an appropriate valuation
model.

The Group has created an “ABFRL Employee Welfare Trust” (ESOP Trust) and uses it as a vehicle for
distributing shares to employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 or any subsequent Stock
Option Scheme. The trust purchase shares of the Company from the market, for giving shares to
employees. The Group treats trust as its extension and shares held by trust are treated as treasury shares.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share options
outstanding account.

For cash-settled share-based payment, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired,
measured initially at the fair value of the liability using a binomial method. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is re-measured,
with any changes in the fair value recognised in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year.

(xiii) Borrowing costs

(xiv)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of
the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Taxes

Current tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in India.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date,
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss are
recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax and deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

(xv) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
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adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(xvi) Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the Company is identified as the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), CODM evaluates the performance of the Company based on the
single operative segment for the purpose of allocation resources and evaluating financial performance.
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